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Alfred Nzo District Municipality
Annua! Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The acoounting officer is required by the Munlelpal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintuin adequate
accounting recorda end is reaponsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and relaied finanoctal
information included in this repoit. It Is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements
fairly present the state of affairs of the municipality as at the and of the finanoial year and the resulis of its operations and cash
flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express ah independent opinion on the annual financial
statements and were given unrestrictad access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives lsaued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgemants and esfimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the municipelity and place conslderable impartance on maintaining a strong control anvironment, To enable the aecounting
officer to meet these responsibiities, the sats standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a
cost effective manner. The standards include the propsr defsgation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effectlve accounting precedurss and adequats segragafion of dufies to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the municipality and ail employses are required io malntain the highest ethlesl standards in ensuring the
municipality’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reascnabie circumstances is above reproach. Tha focus of rigk
management in the municipality is on identifying, assessing, managing and menitoring all knoewn ferms of risk across the
municipality. While operating risk cannot be fully efliminated, the municipality endeavnure to minimise it by ensuring that
appropriate Infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procadures
and constraints.

The acoounting officer is of the opinion, based on the informaticn and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financisl recorde mey be relled on for the preparation of the annuel
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not ebsolute,
assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2023 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, he is satisfied that the municipality has or has access to adequate resources to -
continue in operational exlstence for the foreseeable future.

The municipality is wholly dependent on the government for continued funding of operations. The annusl financial statements
are prepared on the basls that the municipality is a golng concern and that the government has neither the intention nor the
need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipality.

Although the is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipality, they are supporied by the municipalliy's
mahagement and the Audit Committee.

The annual financlal statements set out on papes 8 to 75, which have been prepared on the going concem basis, ware
approved by the Accounting Officer on 31 August 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:

=S

Z H Sikhundla
Accounting Officer
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Alfred Nzo District Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Accounting Officers Report

The accounting officer submits his report for the period ended 30 June 2022,

1. Revlew of actlvitles

Main business and aperations

Net surplus of the municipality was R 725,607,812 (2021: surplus R §53,283,035).

2, Golng concemn

The annual financlal statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concem. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent cbligations and commitments will cccur in the ordinary course of business.

3. Subseguent events

On the 31st of August 2022, the Alfred Nzo District Municipality council met and approved the write off of imegular expenditure
as shown on the notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

4. Corporate governance

General

management is commitied to business integrity, transparency and professlonalism in al! its acfivities. As part of this
commitment, management supports the highest standards of corporale governance and the cngoing development of best
practice,

5. Interest In contretled entities

Detsils of the municipality's investment in controlled entities are set out in note 12,

The annual financial statements set out on pages 6 to 75, which have bean prepared on the going concem basis, were
approvad by the Accounting Officer on 31 August 2022 and were signed by:

(e

Z H Slkhundla
Accounting Officer
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Alfred Nzo District Municipality
Annuga! Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2022

Figures in Rand Nota(s) 2022 2021
Restated*

Assets

Current Assels '

inventories 4 19,665,367 16,952,024

Receivables from non-exchange fransactions 5 18,989,338 25,006,874

Receivables from exchange transactions <] 50,765,164 51,115,080

VAT recaivable T 42,145,168 42,578,200

Cash and cash equivaients 8 P86,839,445 775,143,517

1,098,394,480 910,793,675

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and eguipment S  5,080,845811 4,539,144 269
intangible assets 10 762,012 1,327,208
Heritage acsets 11 131,100 131,100
Investments In controlied entitiea 2 100 100
Investments 14 10,134 587 8,431,087

5,071,874,610 4,550,033,764
Non-Cuirent Assets 5,071,874,610 4,550,033,764
Current Assels 1,098,394,480 910,793,675
Total Assets 6,170,269,090 5,480,827,439
Liabllitles

Current Liabiiitles

Qperating lease liability 15 223,520 205,046
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 16 - B8,732014
Provisions 17 26,613 487 26,337,671
Employee benefit obligation 18 2,002,000 2,291,000
Payables from exchange transactions 18 245,798,164 174,638,138
Payables from non exchange traneacfions 20 3,008,207 1,671,668
277,541,387 293,878,467
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee benefits obligation 18 10,080,000 9,811,000
Nen-Current Liabilities 10,080,000 9,911,000
Current Liabilities 277,541,387 293,876,467
Total Liabilitles 287,621,387 303,787.487
Assets 6,170,269,080 5,460,827,430
Liabilities {287,621,387) (303,787,467)
Net Assets §,882,647,703 5,157,038,972
Accumulated surplus 5,882,847,703 5,157,038.872
Total Net Assets 65,662,647,703 5,157,038,972
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Alfred Nzo District Municipality

Annual Financial Stalements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Financial Performance for the Period ended 30 June 2022

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated*

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Service charges 22 26,422,862 26,722,055

Rental of facilities and equipment 23 1,781 2,775

Agency services 24 263,388 292,091

Other income 25 4,274,783 1,038,462

Interest received % 43,411,288 34,808,322

Actuarial gains 1,667,983 255,716

Total revenue from exchange transactions 76,032,075 63,119,421

Reventte from non-exchange transactlons

Transfer revenue

Government granis & subsidies 27  1,354,327,108 1,188,755,750

76,032,075

63,118,421

1,354,327,106 1,188,756,750

Total revenue 21  1,430,359,181 1,251,875,171
Expenditere

Employee related costs 28 (271,818,377} (275,660,182)
Remuneration of councilors 29 (10,480,130) (10,823,6898)
Litigation expenditurs 30 {7.268,2563)  (4,338,081)
Deprechation 31 (102,788,522) (95,782,290)
Amortisation 32 (492,017) {5286,608)
Finance costs 33 (406,049) (3.617)
Lease rentals on opsrating lease 34 (1,502,041) (906,774)
Debt Impairment 35 (6,480,668) {50,872)
Bulk purchases 36 (10,285.405)  (9,638,772)
Contracted services 37  (150,960,975) (175,754,143)
Transfars and subsidies 38 (18,010,818) (17.775,727)
Loss on disposal (641,947) (1,149,510)
General expenses 89 (123,828,077) (106,191,852)

Total expenditure

(704,751,369) (698,592,136)

Total revenue

‘Total expenditure
Operating surpius/deficit
Surplus before taxation
Taxation

Surplus for the year

1,430,356,181 1,251,875,171
(704,751,368) (698,592,136)

725,607,812 552,283,035

725,607,812 §63,283,035

AUDITOR GENERAL
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Alfred Nzo District Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the Period Ended 30 June 2022

Accumutated Total nat

Figures In Rand surplus assels
Balance at 01 July 2020 4,632,114,468 4,632,114,468
Changes in et assets
Prior year errors adjustments (28,357,531) (28,357,531)
Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets (28,357.631) (28,357.631)
Surplus for the year 553,283,035 553,283,035
Total racognised Income and expenses for the year 524,925,504 624,925,504
Total changas 524,025,504 524,825,504
Restated* Balance at 01 July 2021 5.1567,039,891 5,157,039,891
Changes in net essets
Surplus for the year 725,607,812 725607812
Total changes 725,807,812 725,607,812
Balance at 30 Juna 2022 5,882,647,703 5,882,647,703
Note 52

AUDITOR GENERAL
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Alfred Nzo District Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2022

Figures in Rand

Note(s) 2022 2021
Restated*

Cash flows from operating activities

Recelpts

Service charges

Other raceipts

Interest income

Government granis and subsidies

24,912,481 29,313,029
4,538,832 1,333,328
32,854,204 24,322,233
1,265,694,192 1,201,178,278

1,326,000,808 1,256,146,868

Payments

Employee costs
Suppliers

Finaree costs
Councillors

Grants and subsidies

(269,782,758) (272,515,579)
(212,568,200) (320,332,331)

(406,049) (3.617)
(10,499,130) (10,823,865)
(18,010,818) (17,775,731)

(511,277,046) (630,450,853)

Total receipts
Total payments
Net cash flows from operating activities

1,328,000,809 1,256,146,868
(511,277,046) (630,450,953)
42 816,722,763 625,695,915

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and eguipment
Purchase of other intangible assets

Staff loan repayment

Proceeds from asset disposal

g (625,728,830) (428,801,778)
10 . (693,859)
12,000 12,000
688,865 1,083,319

Net cash flows from investing activities

(625,027,535) (428,480,318)

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan repayment

. (6.926)

Net increasel/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

191,605,828 197,208,671
776,143,617 577,034,848

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year

8 066,830,445 775,143,517

AUDITOR GENERAL
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Annua! Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand ' actual

Statement of Financlal Performance

Revenue

Revenues froim exchange

transactions

Service charges 38,530,718 (497,083) 38,033,635 28420862 (11,610,773) a)
Rental of facllities and equiprment - 2,200 2,200 1,781 {439) b}
Agency services - . - 263,388 263,388 c)
Reservas 77,802,436 22,397,565 100,000,000 - {100,000,000) d)
Cther income 837,849 511,045 1,348,984 4274783 2,925,889 e)
Interest received 30,108,032  (1,657.436) 28470,896 43411288 14,940,692 f)

Total revenue from exchange 147,079,034 20,776,291 167,855325 74,374,082 (93,481,243)
fransactions

Revenue fioin non-exchalige
transactions

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 1,208,575,000 184,300,331 1,380,884,331 1,364,327,106  (36,867,226) (r

"Total revenue from exchange 147,070,034 20,776,281 167856325 74,374,082 (93,481,243)
transactions’

‘Total revenus from non- 1,208,675,000 184,308,331 1,390,884,331 1,354,327,106  (36,657,225)
exchange transactions'

Total revenue 1,358,654,034 205,085,622 1,558,739,656 1,428,701,188 (130,038,468)
Expenditure

Employes related costa (301,658,900) 5,672,351 (265,986,548) (271818,377) 24,368,172 h)
Remuneration of councillors (12,3986,390) (203,189) (12,599,588) (10,409,130) 2,100,458 0
Depreciation and amortisation {100,000,000) (4,000,000} (104,000,000) (103,260,5630) 738,461 K)
Finance costs - {500,000) {500,000) (406,049) 93,961 1)
Debt Impairment (25,000,000y 9,000,000 (16,000,000) (s480,668) 9,510,332 )
Inventory censumed (32,955,000)  (1,404,000) (34,359,000) (26751,037) 7,607,963 m)
Contraoted Servicas (202,137,000} 11,303,000 (190,834,000) (150,080975) 39,873,025 n)
Transfers and subsidies (21,150,000) 348481 (20,801,519) (18,010,818) 2,790,701 o)
General expenses (89,754,000) (28,042,000) (117,796,000) (116,112,628)  1,683,1M1

Total expenditure (785,051,209)  (7,825,357) (792,876,656) (704,100,422) 88,767,234

1,353,654,034 205085622 1,558,739,656 1,428 701,188 {130,038,468)
(785,051,209) 23,001,375 (762,049,924) (704,109422) 57,940,502

Operating surplus 568,602,735 228,086,997 796,689,732 724,891,766 (72,097,966)
Actuarial gainsflosses . - - 1,857,963 1,657,983 a)
Loss on non-current assete held - - - (841,847) (641,947) )

for sale or dispossal groups

- - - 1,016,046 1,018,048

568,802,735 228,086,907 796,689,732 724501766 (72,097,966)
. - . 1,018,046 1,016,048
Surplus 568,602,735 228,086,997 796,689,732 725,607,812  (71,081,920)

Capex 584,360,200 107,080,724 762,046,924 625,728,829 (136,321,095) )
Surplus 568,602,735 197,260,265 766,863,000 725,807,812 (40,265,188)
Capex 564,360,200 107,689,724 762,049,924 g2572882g (136,321,005)

10
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Alfred Nzo District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts |

Budget on Accrual Basis

Approved  Adjusiments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference

budget on comparable between final
basis budget and
Figures in Rand actual

Actual Amount on Comparable 4,242,535 (429,459} 3,813,076 £9,878,983 95,065,907 .
Basls as Presented in the

Budget and Actual

Comparative Statement

Reconciliation

a) Service charges - During the year, the Municipality replaced some of the non- functioning meters, this was expacted fo yield
positive results and realise more revenue but due to problems with areas where there were infrastructure breakdown, there was
no water and hence less revenue than anticipated,

b) Rental of facilities and Equipment- These are furids charged for hiring of the conference centre.

c) Agency Services- Is commission charged by the Municipality on gamishee orders and other employee deductions done an
behalf of third parties.

d) Reserves, this is a non cash item that covers the budgeted figures depreciation for the year and as such it has nil effect as it
is balanced out by another non- cash item , depreciation.

&) Other income- includes, a major contributor, the sale of tender documents , fees charged for property clearances, hiring out
of facilities and other sundry charges. During the year some retentions were forfeited by some service providers and resulted in
Incraase in other income than anticipated..

f) Interest eamed- More (nvestments were made as there was a delay in procurament due to the announcement made by
National Treasury as a resulf of the court cage on Preferential Proourement, more funds were then invested.

g) Geins- These were actuarial gains which were not budgeted for from the assessment done by the actuaries on long term
employse benefits.

h) Employee Related Costs- The budgeted figure was based on an estimated increase of 6.5% but the council approved 3.5%
increase. Further, contracts that expired during the period, especially for Managers, were not renewed.The salary increments
for Managers were only paid after year end.

i) Remuneration of councllors - The budgeted figure was based on an estimated increase of 6.5% however, the minister of
COGTA approved 3% increase. There was also a transition period where there wasg no souncil.The salary increment for
Councilors was approved and paid afier year end.

j) Debt impairment- Tha underspending is due to increase in the amount of old dabt that was not paid at year end.

k) Depraciation and amertisation - The budgeted figure was based on estimate, based on the projects expected to be
completed and actual expenditure was not far from the budgsted figure.

1) Finance costs- The amount is reported as fruitless expenditure, please refer to the note for fruitless expenditure

m} Inventory consumed- Govers coste for stationery, fuel, and il and other stock items consumed during the year. There was a
period where there was na procurement, this then mede the Munidipality to purchase most stock during the last quarter of the
financial period. VAT is also not included in the actual expenditure.

n) Contracted services- This includes repairs and maintenance costs. There was a period where there was no procurement in
the last period this then resuited inte underspending. VAT is not included in the actual expenditure reported.

o) Transfers and Subsides- The actual expenditure reported excludes Value Added Tax for transfers made and it appears as if
there is less expenditure whereas it is not the case.

p) Loss on disposal- This is loss incurred in the disposal of assets which was not budgeted for, This is due mainly to Municipal
vehicles that were involved Tn accidents and had to bs written off.

) Capital Expenditure - During the financial year, National Traasury halted prosurement for sometime, this then contributed to
underspending in expenditure. The expenditure reporied aleo excludes VAT.

r) Govetnment grants and subsidies- The variance is due to RBIG grant, which is a schedule 6B grant. The municipality only
claims after the condition has been met.
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Alfred Nzo District Municipality 11 JAN 7023

Annual Financial Stataments for the year ended 30 June 2022

1.4 Signlificant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and relatsd disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgemant is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual financtal siatements. Significant judgements include:

Other significant jJudgements, sources of estimation uncertainty and/or relating information, have been disclosed in the relating
notes.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or servicas, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during
more than one period,

The cost of an itemn of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
+ itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the
municipality; and
s the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment Is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and squipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the
jocation and condition necessary for It to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in amiving at the cost.

Whare an asset is acquired through a non-vxchange transaction, its cost s its fair value as at dale of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant end equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the camying amount of the asset{s) given up,

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, thay are ateounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incumred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an ltem of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimata of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
Included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the eniity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the camrying amount of an itemn of property, plant and eguipment ceases when the item is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by managemant.

Itams such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the
recognition criteria zbove are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining
inspection costs from the previous inspestion are derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciafion and any impairment losses.

Praperty, plant and equipment are depreciated on the siraight line basis over thelr expected useful lives 1o thelr estimated
resicual value.

Preperty, plant and equipment is camied at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessad as follows:

tem Depreciation method Average useful life
Buildings Straight-line 10-40
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1.5 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Plant and maohinery Straight-line 2-20
Furniture and fixtures Straight-line 2-20
Motor vehicies ' Straight-line 4-10
Office equipment Straight-line 2-20
Infrastructure - Roads Straight-line 5-15
Infragtructure- Sanitation Straight-line 2-85
Infrastructurs- Water Straightdine 2-100
Bing and Containers Straight-line 510
Computer Equipment Straightine 210
Emergency Equipment Straight-fine 2-18
Fark Homes Straight-iine 20-40
Specizlised Vehiclas Straight-line 515
Land Straight-line Unlimited

The depreciable amount of an assstis allocated on a systemalic basis over its useful life.

Each part of an Item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant In ralafion te the fotal eost of the item is
depraeciated separately.

The depreclation method used reflscts the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the municipality. The depreciztion method applied fo an assat is reviewed at least at each
reporiing date and, if there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of tansumption of the future sconomic
benefite or service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changad to reflect the changed pattern. Such g change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The municipallly essesses at each reporting date whether there Is any Indication that the municipaiity expectations about the
resitiual value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
municipality revises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another aseet.

Itemes of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when thera are no further economic
benefits or service potential expesctsd from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, If any, and the camying amcunt of the item.

Assets which the municipality holds for rentals {o others and subsequently routinely seil as part of the ordinary course of
activities, are transferred te inventories when the rentals and and the assets are avallable-for-sale. Proceeds from =ales of
these assels are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are includad in cash flows from operating activities i
the cash flow statement.

The municipality seperately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the notes to the
financial statements {see note 37 }.

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction ar development, in the notes to the
financial statements (see note 8 ).

1.6 [ntangible assets

An asset is identifiable If it either:

u is separable, .0, is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or

= arisss from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whather those rights are
trangferable or separable from the municipslity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it ware In
the form of a contract.
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1.6 [Intangible assets (continued)

An intangible asset is recognisad when:
* it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are atiributable to the asset will
fiow to the munieipality; and
+  the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipality assesses the probability of expected fulure economic banefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of aconomic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
gt its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on rasearch {or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

An intanglbla assef arising from development {or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

there is an ability to use or sell it,

it will generate probable futtire economic benefits or service potential.

there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sall the
ageet,

s the expenditure atfributable to the asset during ite development can be measured reliably.

Intanglble assets are camied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, basad on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the assat is expected {0 generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intanglble assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indicafion that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortigation is provided on a straight-line basis over their usefu) life,
The amortisatioh period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewesd at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As & result the assef is tested for impalrment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.

internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets,

Internally ganerated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on & straight-line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item . Depreclation method Average useful life
Compuler software Straight-line 2-5

Intangible assets are derecognised:
*  on disposal including disposal through a non -exchange transoation; or
e when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from ifs use or disposal.

The gain or loss atising from the derecognition of infangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the asset is
derecognised {unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.7 Herltage assets

Assets are resources conlrolled by an municipality as a result of past events and from which future economic bensfits or
service potential are expected to flow to the municipalify.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated impairment losses.
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1.7 Heritage assets (continued)

Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or function in an municipality’s cperations that
is shown as a single tem for the purpose of disclosure in the annual financial statements.

Cuost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire an assst at the
time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount atiributed to that asset when initiatly recognised in
accordance with the specific requirements of other Standards of GRAP.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreniable amount of an assef over its usefu| life.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a fiability setfled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transaction.

Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historlcal, natural, scienfific, technological or artistic significance
and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.

An impalrment loss of a cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable service amount.

An inalienable item is an asset that an munigipality is required by law or ctherwise to retain indefinitely and cannot be disposed
of without consent.

Recoverable amount i the higher of a cash-generating assel's net selling price and ite value in use.
Reccverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs (o sell and its value in use.

Value In use of 2 cash-generating asset Is the present value of the future cash flows expectad to be derived from an asset or
cash-generating unit.

Value in use of & non-cash-ganerating assst is the prasent vaiue of the asset's remaihing service potentiel.

The municipality sepsrately discloses expenditure ta repair and malntain heritage assets in the notes to the financial
statementis (see note ).

The municipality discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, In the notes to the
finzncial statements (sea note ),

Recognition

The munlcipailty recognises a heritage asset as an asset If it is probable that future sconomic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be meesured reliably,

initlal measurement
Heritage assels are measured at cost.

Where & heritage asset is scquired through 2 non-oxchange transaction, Its cost is measured at its falr value ss at the date of
ecquisition.
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1.7 Heritage assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assefs is carried at iis cost less any acoumulated impairment lcsses.

Afier recognifion as an asset, a class of heritage assets, whose fair value can be measured reliably, is carried at a revalued
amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subssquent impairment losses.

If 2 heritage asset's carying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to a revaluation
surplus. However, the increase is recognised in surplus or deficit 1o the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same heritage asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit.

if & hetltage asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognisad in surplus or deficit.
However, the decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation
surplus in respect of that heritage asset.

Derecognition

The municipality derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are
axpected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is included in surplus or defieit when the item is
derecognised {unless the Standard of GRAP on leases requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

1.8 FlInancial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabilily or a rasidual
interest of ancther entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or finansial Hability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repaymente, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility,

A concessionary loan [s a loan granted to or received by an entity on tarms that are not market related.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financlal instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by falling to discharge
&n obligation.

Currency risk is the rigk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuste because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liabllity from an enfity’s statement of
financisl position.

The effective interest method is @ method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or & financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial llabllities) and of allocating the interast income or Interest expense over the relevant period, The
sffective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. Whan calculating the effactive interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses, The
caleulation includes all fees and peints paid or received between parties to the contract that are at integral part of the effective
interest rate {sce the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the ¢ash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash fiows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the confractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair valua is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm's length transaction,

A financial asset is:
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1.8 Financial instruments (continued)
* cash:
«  gresidual Interest of ancther entity; or
. a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from ancther entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financlal habilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable o the entity,

A financial guarantee coniract is @ contract that requiras the issuar to make spevified payments to reimburse the holder for a
ioss It inoure besause a specified debtor f2ils 1o m=ke payment when due in sccordance with the ofiginal or modified terms of 2
debt instrument. '

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
+  deliver cash or another financlal asset to another enity; or
«  axchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfaveurable to the entity.

Intsrest rate risk is the risk that the fair valua or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
markst interest rates.

Liquidity risk Is the risk encountered by an entity In the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
lizbilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Loan commitment is & firn commitment to provide credit under pre-specified torms and sonditions.
Loans payable are financiel iabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrumeant will fluctuate beoause of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk; currancy fisk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will flustuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk}, whether those changes are caused by facters
spacific to the individual financial instrument or its issusr, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

A fingncial aseat I8 past due whan & counterparty has falled to make 8 payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting afl of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
= equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
+ g formal designation of a transfer of resources {or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entily’s net assets, elther before the contribution acours or at the time of the contribution; or
+ g formal agreement, in relation o the contribution, establishing or increasing en existing financial Interest in the net
assesis of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly atributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial assst or
financial ligbiiity. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or
disposed of the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financlal liabifitfes that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

» the entity designates at falr value at initial racognition; or

+« are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are Investments in residual interests that do net have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
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1.8 Financlal instruments (continued)
Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Unlisted Investments Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Investmants in Fixed Deposits Financial asset measured at armotised cost
Long Term Receivables Financlal asset measured at amortised cost
Receivables From Exchange Transactions Financial ssset measured at amortised cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents- Call Deposits Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents Financial asset measured at armotised cost

The entity has the following types of financiat liabilities (classes and category) as refiected on the face of the statemant of
financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Long Term Libailities Financial abitity measured at amortised cost
Payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost
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1.8 Financial Instruments {continued)

Initial Recognition

The entity shall recognise financial asset or financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a
party to the contractuai provisions of the instrument.

The entity racognises financial assets using trade date ascounting.
Initial mezsurement of financial assets and financlsl liabilities

The enfity measures a financial asset and financial liability initlally at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liabllity.

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability Initially at [ts fair value (If subsequently measured at fair value),

The entity first asassses whather the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact & loan. On inltial recognition, the entity
analyses a concessionary lon into its component parts and accounts for each component separately.
The entity accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is:
> & soclal benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Finencial Statements,
where it is the issuer of the loan; or
>non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the standard of GRAPon revenue from Non- exchangs Transactions{
Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.

Subsequent measurement of the financlal assets and financlal liabliitles

The entity measures all financiel assets and financial liabllities efter initial recognition using the following categoties:
>Financlal instruments at fair value.
>Financial instruments &t amortised cost
>Financial instruments at cost

All fingnclal assets measured at amortised cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Reclassification

The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is Issued or held unless it is
>combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value ;or
>an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification

Where the entity cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has basn separated from a host
contract that Is & financlal instrument at a subsequent reporting date It measures the combined instrement at fair value. This
requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.

If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair valus, the entity
reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying ameunt at the date that fair vaiue is no longer available
bacomes the cost, :

If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in e residual interest for which a measure was previously not
available , and the instrumsnt would have been required to be measured af fair value, tha enfity reclassifies the instrument from
cost o fair value,

Galns and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial assat of financial liability measured at fair value is
recognisad in surplus or deficit.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortlsed cost or cost, a gain or loss s recognisad in surplus or defiolt
when the financial asset or finanelal liabllity is unrecognised or impaired er through the amortisation process,

Impairment and uncollectability of financlal assets
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1.8 Financlal instruments (continued)

The entily assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financlal asset or group
of assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortisad cost has besn incurred , the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cashflows (excluding future credit [osses that have not been incutred ) discounted at the finansial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced direstly OR through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, In & subssquent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can bs related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
atjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not besn recognised at the date the impairment Is reversed. The amount
of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financlal assets measured at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investmeant in a residual interest that is not
measured ai fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financlal asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

Derecognition

Financlal assets
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting
The entity dercognises financial asset only when:

>the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the fiananclal asset expire, are setited or waived;
>the entity transfers to another party substantially all the risks and rewrads of ownership of the financial asset: or
>the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset , has
transfered control of the asset to another party and the other party has practicat ability to sell the asset in its enterety
fo an un related party, and ie able to exercise that ability unflaterally and without needing to impose additional
restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :
- Derecognise the asset; and
-recognise separately any rights and obligations created in the transfer

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations ratained and those transferred on
the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at fair values at
that date. Any difference befween the consideration received and the amounts recognised in the surplus or deficit in the period
of the transfer.

If the entity transfere a financial asset in a transfer in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the
right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servieing
contract. If the fee to be received is not expected to be more than adequate compensation for the servicing, a serviclng assst is
recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis of an aliocation of the carrying amount of the larger
financiel asset.

If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derscognised in its entirety but transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or & servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, financial
liability or servicing fizbllity at falr value,

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of tha
consideration recelved is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If a transter doas not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially alf the risks and rewards of ownership
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1.8 Financlal Instruments {continued)

of the transferred asset, the entity continues to recognise the tranefarrad asset In iis entirety and recognise

for the consideration raceived. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred asset and any
expense incurred on the financial fisbility. Neither the asset, and the associated liabllity nor the revenue , and the associated

expenses are offset.

Firancial liablities

The entity removes & financial liability { or a pert of a financial kability) from its statemsnt of financls! positon wheniitis
extinguished i.e - when the obligation specified int the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

A exchange betwesn an sxisting borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as
having extinguished the original financial liability and & new financial liability is recognised . Similarly, & substantial modification

of the terms of an existing financial liability or 2 part of it Is accounied for as having extinguished the original financial ligbility
and having recognised a new financial fiability.

The difference betwean the oarrying amount of & financial fiability { or part of a finandial liabillty) exiingulehing or transferred to
another parly and the consideration paid, inoluding eny non cash- assets transferred or llabiilties assumed, iz recognised in

surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are walved , forgiven or assumed by ancther entity by way of a non- exchange transaction
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on revenue from non-exchange Transaction ( Taxes and

Transfers)
Presentation

Interest relating to a financial Instrument or component that Is a financial Habillly is derecognised as revenus or expense in
surplus or defieit.

Distributions to holders of residual interests are recognised by the entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs incurred on
residual inlerasts are accounted for as a deduction from net assets . Income tax ( where applicable ) relating to distributions to

holders of residual iriterests and to transaction costs incurred on 2 residual inferests are accounted for in accordance with the
International Accounting Standarde on Income Taxes.

A financial asset and a financial llabllity sre only offeet and net amount presented in the statement of financial position when
the entity cumently has a legally enforceabile right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the labillty simulianeously.

in accounting for 2 transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecogrition, the entiiy does not offset the transferred
asset and the associated liability.

1.8 Leases

A lease is classified s a finance lease if it fransfers substantially all the rieks and rewards incidental to ownership. A Isase is
classified as an operating lease if it does not iransfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Wher a lsase includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses tha classificafion of each element separately.
Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a stralght-ine basis over the leass tarm.

Initial direct ¢osts mcurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added fo the camying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.

“The agpregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the iease term on a straight-line basis.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as B reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a stralght-iine basls,

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.
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19 Leases (continuted)

Operating leases - [essee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recegnised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liabillty.

1.10 Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except whers inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lowar of cost and net realisable value,

Inventories are measured at the lowar of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
*  distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
*  consumpticn in the production process of goods fo be disiributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.

Net realisable valus is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary {o make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Current replacement cost is the cost the municipality incurs to acquire the asset on the reparting date.

The cost of inventories comprises of all coats of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories {o their present location and condition.

The cost of Inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specific projects is assigned using specific [dentification of the individual costs,

The cost of inventories is assigned using the formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature
and use to the municipality.

Whaen inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are renderad. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the pariod the write-down or loss oceurs, The amount of any
reversal of any write-dowr of inventorigs, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised &s an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs,

Water Inventory

Woater is regarded as inventory when the Municipality purchases water in bulk with the intention to resell if to the consumers or
to use it internally, or where the Municipality has incurred purification costs on water obtained from natural resources (rain,
rivers, springs, boreholes efc.). However, water in dams, that are filled by naturel rescurces and that has not yet been treated,
and is under the control of the Municipality but cannot be measured reliably as there is no cost attached to the water, and it is
therefore not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

The basis of determining the cost of water purchased arid not yet sold at Statement of Financiat Position date comprises all
costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs inourred in bringing the inventory to its present location and condition,
net of trade discounts and rebates. Water Is valued by using the weighted average method, at the iowest of purified cost and
net realisable value, insofar as it is stored and controlled in reservoirs at year-end,

1.11 Impairment of non-cash-generating asseis

Cash-generafing assets are assets used with the objective of generating a commercial retum. Commercial return means that
positive cash flows are expected to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potantial of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the assst's fufure economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amorilsation).
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1.11 impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

Carrying amount is the amount st which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
retum that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Custs of disposal are incremental costs directly afiributable io the disposal of an wsset, excluding finance cosis and Income tax
expense,

Depreciation (Amertisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life,

Fair vaiue less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an assetin an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable sarvice amount fs the higher of a non-cash-pensrating asset's fair value less costa to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
. the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municlpality; or
= the number of production or similar units expscted o be cbtained from the asset by the municipelity.

Designation

At initial recognition, the municipality deslgnates an asset as non-cash-generating, or an assst or cash-generating unif as cash-
generating. The designation is mads onh the basis of a municipality's objective of using the asset,

The municipality designates an asset ot a cash-generating unit &s cash-generating when:
o its objective is to use tha asset or & cash-generating unit in a manner that generates a commaercial return; such that
» the asset or cash-generating unit will generate positive cash flows, from continuing use and its ultimate disposal, that
are expacted to be significantly higher than the cost of the asset,

The municipality designates an asset as non-cash-generating when its objective ie not to use the asset to generate a
commercial refurn but to deliver services.

An asset used with the cbjective of ganerating a commaersial return and service delivery, is designated sither as a cash-
generating asset or non-cash-generating asset based on whether the municipelity expects to use that asset to generate a
commercial return. When it is not clear whether the objective is to use the asset to generate a commercial return, the
municlpaiity designates the asset as a non-cash-generating asset and applies this accounting policy, rather than the
accounting pelicy on Impairment of Non-cash-generating assets.

1.12 Employee benefits
Employee benefits ara all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendersd by employaes.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting eniity, if the procaeds of the poliey can be used only to pay or fund
employes benefits under & defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporiing entity’s own craditors (aven in liquldation)
and cannot be pald to the reporting entity, uniess either:
= the proceeds represent surplus assete thet are not needed for the policy to meet all the related emplayee benefit
obligations; or
*  the proceads are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee bensfits already paid.

Termination benefits are amployee benefits payable as a result of sither:
*  an entity's decision to terminate an employee's employment before the normal retirement date; or
*  anemployee's decisicn to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits,

Other long-tarm employae benefits are employee bensfits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that
are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment.
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1.12 Employee benefits {¢ontinued)

Composite social secutity programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide post-
employmant benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattemn of past practice,
published palicies or & sufficlently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it wilt accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be seltled within tweive
monthe afler the end of the perlod in which the employses render the related service.

Short-term employee bensfits include items such as:

s wages, salaries and social security contributions;

s  shorf-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave} where the compensation for the
absences is due to be settied within twelve months after the end of the reporting period In which the employees
rander the related employes service;

*  bonus, incentive and performance refated payments payabla within twelve months after the end of the reporting
pariod in which the employees render the related service; and

*  non-menetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during & reporting period, the entity recognises the undiscounted amount
of short-temmn employee benefits expected to be pald in exchange for that service:

«  as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. if the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognises that excess ae an asset {prepaid axpense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

»  as an expense, unless another Standard requires or parmits the inclusion of the bensfits in the cost of an agset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entittement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The antity measures the expecied
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitternent that has accumulated at the reporting date. ‘

The entlty recognises the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic altemative but o make the payments.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of
employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits
for one or more employess.

Multi-employer plans are defined contribution plans {other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or
defined benefit plans {other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common
control and use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that contribution and
benefit lsve!ls ara determined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employees concemed.
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued)

Multl-employer plans and/or State plans andlor Composlte soclal securlty programmes

The entity classifies a multi-employer plan and/er state plens and/or composite social security programmes as a defined
contribution plan or a defined benefit plan under the terms of the plan (including any constructive obligation that goes beyond
the formal terms).

Where a plan Is a defined contribution plan, the sniity accounts for in the same way as for any other definéid contribution plan.

Where a plan is a defined banefit plan, the entity account for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan
assets and cost associated with the plan in the same way as for any other defined benefit plar.

When sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting for a plan, that is a defined benefit plan, the entity
agcount for the plan as if it was a defined contribution plan.

ingured banefits

Where the entity pays insurance premiums to fund a post-employment benefit plan, the entity treats such a plan as a defined
contribuiion pian uniess the entity will have (either direclly or indirectly through the pian) a legal or construstive obligation to
either:
= payihe empioyee benefiis directly when they fail due; ui
= pay further amounts if the insurer does not pay all future employes benefits relating to employee service in the
current and ptier reporting periods.

If the entity retains such a legal or construstive obligation, the enfity treats the plan as a defined benefit plan,
Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans

Defined contribufion plans are posi-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity (& fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further coniributions if the fund doas not hold sufficlent
assets to pay all employea benefils relating o employee service in the current and ptior periods.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognises the contribution payable
to a defined aontribution plan in exchangs for that service:
*  as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution aiready paid. If the contribution already paid
exoseds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognises that axcess as an asset
(prepaid expense) {o the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, & reduction in future payments ora
oash refund; and
*  as anh expense, unless ancther Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an asset.

Where contributione to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelva menths after the end of the reporting
period In which the employess render the releted service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflests tha time value
of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to refisct the time value of money is consistent with the
currancy and estimated term of the obligation.
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1,12 Employee henefits (continued}
Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gaine and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. in measuring its defined
benefit liability the entity recognises actuarial gaina and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they occur.

Asssts held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by the
reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to pay or
fund employee benefits and are aveilable to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the reporting
entity’s own oreditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be retumed to the reporting entity, unless either:
s the remaining essats of the furkl are sufficient to meet &ll the related employee benefit obligations of the plan or the
reporting entity; or
*  the assets are retumed to the reporting entity to reimburse it for empioyee benefits already pald.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined bensfit obligation resulting from employae service in the
current period.

Interest cost Is the increase during a period in the present velue of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the
benefits are one period closer to setiemant.

Past service cost is the change In the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods,
resulting in the cumrent period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment bensfits or other long-term employee
benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the
defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value of the defined
benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benedit liability the entity recognises past service cost as an expense in
the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employes benefit fund and quallfying insurance policies.

The present value of a definad benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future
payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods.

The return on plan asseis Is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derivad from the plan assets, together
with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assats, less any cosis of administering the plan {other than those
included ih the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable by the plan
itself.

The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any constructive
obligation that arises from the entity's informal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive obligation where the
entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive obligation is where a change in
the entity's informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to ite relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:
»  the present value of the defined banefit obligatien at the reporting date:
e minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets {if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly;
»  plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding reguirement

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative {an asset). The entity measures the resulting asset at the
lower of:
+  tha amount determined above; and
«  the present value of any economic benafits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the pian. The present value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which
reflecte the ime value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit
The entity determines the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient

regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements do not diffar materially from the amounts that
would be determined af the reporting date. )
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1.12 Employee beneflts {continued)

Tha entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except ta the extent that another Standard
requires or permits their inclusion in tha cost of an asset:
*  ourrent service cost;
interest cost;
the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
actuarial gains and logses;
past satvice cost;
the effect of any curiafiments or seftlements; and
the effect of applying the limit on 2 defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit ligbility),

The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the
related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Mathod (sometimes known as
the acorued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of service as
giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the relaisd current service cost and, whers applicable,
past service cost, an entity shall attribute benefit to periods of service under the plan's benefit formula. However, if an
employee’s service in later years will lead fo a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, an entity shall atiribute
benefit on e straight-line basis from:
*  the date whan serviee by the employee firet iaads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefils aie
conditional on further service); untit
*  the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further benefis under the plan,
other than from further salary increases.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by Independent aciuariss separately for each pian. The results of the
valuation are updated for any material transactions and other matarial changes in circumstances (including changes in market
prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.

The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or setlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtaliment or
settlement ocours. The gain or loss on a curtallment or seftlement comprises:

¢ any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and

*  any resulting change in the fair value of ths plan assets.

Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measure the obligation (and the related plan assets, if
any) using current actuarial assumptions (including current market Interest rates and other current market prices).

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to setfle a defined benefit
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset Is measurad at fair value. In all other
respects, the asset is traated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to s defined benefit
plan |s [OR [s not] presented as the net of the amount recognieed for & reimbursement.

The entity offsets an asset relating to one plan against a liability relating to another plan when the entlty hes a legally
enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle ebligations under the other plan and intends either to ssitle the
obligations on a net basis, or to realise the surplus in one plan and settle its cbligation under the other plan simultaneously.
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued)
Actuarial assumptions
Actuarial assumptions are unbiased and mutually compatible.

Financial assumptions are based on market expectations, at the reporting date, for the period over which the obligations are to
be settled.

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) reflect the time value of money.
The currency and term of the financial insttument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and astimated term of the post-employment benefit obligatione.

Post-employment benefit obligations are measured on & basis that reflects:

*  estimated future salary increases;

= the benefits set out in the terms of the plan (or resulting from any constructive obligation that goes beyond those
termis) at the reporting date; and

»  estimated future changas in the level of any slate benefits that affect the benefits payable under a defined benefit
plan, if, and only if, either:

s those changes were enacted before the reporting date; or

¢ past history, or other reliable evidence, indicates that those state benefits wili change in some predictable manner,
for example, in line with future changes in general price levels or general salary levels.

Assumptions about medical coste take account of estimated future changes in the cost of medical services, resulting from both
inflation and specific changes In medical cosls.

Other post retirement obligations

The municipality provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upen retirement to some
retirees.

The enfitiement 1o post-retirement health care bensfits is based on the employee remaining In service up fo retirement age and
the completion of a minimum sarvica period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Independent qualified actuaries cairy out valustions of these obligations. The municipality alsc provides a gratuity and housing

subsidy on retirement to certain employees. An annual charge to income is made to cover both these liabilities.

The amount recognised as a liability for ofher long-term employae benefits is the net total of the following amounts:
s the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date; .
»  minus the fair value st the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settlad directly.

The entity shall recognise the net total of the following amounts as axpense or revenus, except to the extent that another
Standard requires or permits their inslusion in the cost of an assstl:
- current service cost;
interest cost;
the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement right recognieed as an asset;
actuarial geins and losses, which shall all be recognised immediately;
past service cost, which shall all be recognised immadiately; and
the effact of any curtaiiments or settlements.
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefite

The entity recognises termination benefits as a liability and an expense when the entity is demansirably committed o zither:
*  terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date: or
+  provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

The entity is demonstrably commitfed to & termination when the entity has 2 detalled formal plan for the termination and is
without reaiistio possibility of withdrawal. The deteiled plan includes [as a minfmum]:

+  the loeefion, function, and approximate number of employees whose services are fo be terminated:

¢ the termination benefits for each job claesification or function; and

¢ the time at which the plan will be imptemented.,

implementation begins as soon as possible and the period of fime to complete implementation is sush that material changes to
the plan are not likely.

Where termination benefits fall due morse than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted using an appropriate
discount rate. The rate used to discount the benefit reflects the time value of money. The currency and tamn of the financial
instrument selected to reflect the fime vaiue of money is consistent with the currency and estimated term of the benefit.

In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the measurement of termination benefits shall be based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are racognised when:
¢ the municipality has a presant obligation as & result of a past event;
*  ltis probable that an outilow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
*  areliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision Is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to ba reuired to seitle the present obligation at the
reporting date,

Where the affect of ime value of meney is matarial, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to ssttie the obligatior.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of meney and the risks specific fo
the liability.

Where some or alt of the expenditure required to seftle a provision is expacted o be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is racognised when, and only when, it Is virually certain that reimbursement will be received If the municipality
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognisad for the relmbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisicns are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligeticn.

Wheres discounting 1s used, the camying amount of & provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase s recognised as an jnterest expanse,

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplue (deficit).

If an entity has a contract that Is cnerous, the present obligation {net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as & provision,
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1.13 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an enfity:

«  has a detalled formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and

+  has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing ite main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
s necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
»  not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipality

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the municipality is committed to the sale
or transfer, that i, there is a binding arrangement.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recegnised in entity comblinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of;

«  tha amount that would be recognised as a provision; and

¢ the amount initially recognised iess cumaulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabllities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 44,

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make speclified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor falls to make payment when due in accorlance with the criginal or modified terms ofa
debt instrument.

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

The municipality recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to ssttle the obligation and a refiable estimate of
the obligation can be mada,

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that
an outflow of resources may be probable are:
=  financial difficulty of the debtor;
»  defaults or delinquencles in interest and capital repayments by the debor,
« breaches of the terms of the debt instrument thet result in i being payable earlier than the agreed term and the
ability of the debtor to settle its cbligation on the amended terms; and
+  adscline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on
the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee Is received by the municipality for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fea is chargad on loan
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date.
Where a fee is charged and the municipality considers that an outfiow of economic resources is probable, an municipality
recognises the obligation at the higher of:
«  the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assals;
and
= the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised In sccordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

1.14 Commitments

ltems are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future ransactions that will normally resuit in the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
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1.14 Cemmitments {continued) . 1\1

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the finangial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
*  Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and
= Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, stabe business of the enfity — therefore salary
sommitments relating to employment contracls or sociel security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.1 Revenue from cxchange transactions

Revenue Is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an
increase in nat assats, other than in¢reases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality recelves assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) io ths other party in exchange.

Falr value Is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a fiabllity settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm'’s length transaction.

Measurement
Revenue is measured gt the fair value of the consideralion received or recslvable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

The amount of revenue arlsing on a transaction which is statwtory (non-contractual) in nature is usually measured by reference
to the relevant legislation, regulation or similar means. The fee structure, tariffs or calculation basis speolfied in lagislation,
regulation or simitar means Is ueed to determine the amount of revenue that should be recognised. This amount represents the
fair value, on initial measurement, of the consideration received or receivable for revenus that arises from a stetutory {non-
contractual) arvangement (see the accounting policy on Statitory Receivables).

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

»  the municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

*  the municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement lo the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

*  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

*  itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
munigipality; and

«  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably,

Rendering of servicas

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can ba astimated reliably, revenus associated with
the transaction is recoghieed by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

«  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« itis probable that the economic banefits or service potential associated with the transaction will fiow to the

municipality;
*  the siage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured religbly; and
*  the costs Incired for the traneaction and the costs to complete the transaction can bs measured rallably.

When services are performed by an Indeterminate numbar of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the specified time frame unless there Is svidence that some other method better reprasents the stage of
completion, When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is pestponed until the
significant act is executed,

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated refiably, revenus is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses resognised that are recovarable,

Service revenue is recognised by reference o the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion is determined by services performed o date as a percentage of total services to be performed.
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1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions {continued)
interest, royaities and dividends

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interast, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when: -
«  [tis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow fo the
municipality, and
s The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Inferest is recognised using the effective interest rate method for financial instruments, and using the nominal interest rate
method for statutory receivables. Interest levied on transactions arising from exchange or non-exchange transactions e
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction.

Royalties are recognised ae they are eamned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficlt, when the municipality's right to recelve payment has
besn established.

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.

1.16 Revenue from nioh-exchange transactions

Revenus comprises gross inflows of aconomic benefits or service potential received and receivable by a municipality, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than incresses relating to contributions from owners.

Conditione on transforred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic bensfits or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potantial must be
returned to the transferor.

Control of an asset arise when the municipality cen use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can
exclude or otherwise ragulate the access of others to that benefit,

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assats) to another entity in
exchange.

Expenses paid through the tax system sre amounts that ara available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not they pay
taxes.

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or racelvable by entities, as determined by a ¢ourt or other law
enforcament body, as a conseguence of the breach of laws or regulations.

Non-exchange transactions are {ransactions that are not exchange transactions. In a nen-exchange transaction, a municipality
sither receives value from another municipality without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another municipality without dlirestly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be usad,
but do not spacify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arangement, imposed upon the use ofa
transferred asset by entities external to the reporfing municipality.

Recoghition

An Inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction racognised as an asset [s recognised as ravente, except to the extent
that a liabllity is alse recognised in respect of the same infiow.

As the municipality satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an
amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
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1.16 Revenue from hon-axchange transactiona (continwed)
Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange fransaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipality.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the municipality recognises an asset, it 2lso recognises revanue equivalent
to the amount of the asset measurad at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it s alsa required to recognise a
ifability. Where a liabllity is requirad to ba recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net aesets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a
Habllity is subsequently reduced, bacause the taxable event octurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the
liability is recognised as revenue.

Receivables that arise from statutory (non-confractual) arrangements are initially measured in accordanee with this accounting
policy, as well as the accounting pelicy on Statutory Receivables. The entity applies the accounting poficy on Statutory
Recalvables for the subsequent measurement, derecognition, presentation and disclosure of statutory recelvables.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest rate mathod for financial instruments, and using the nominal interest rate
method for statutery receivables. Interest levied on transactions arising from exchange or non-exchange transactions is
classified based on the nature of the underlying transaction,

1.17 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthoriged expenditure meana;
e overspending of & vote or a maln division within & vote; end
. expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vole or, in the eass of 2 maln division, net In aceordance with

the purpase of the main division.

All expanditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where receovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financia! performance.

Unauthorisad expenditure is accounted for in line with ali relating requirements, Including, but not limited to, ruling Legtslation,
Regulations, Frameworks, Circulars, Instruction Notes, Practice Notes, Guidelines etc (as applicable).

1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitiess expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reascnable care beesn
exercised.

All expenditure releting to fruitless and wasteful expenditure I recognised as an expense In the statement of financial
performance in the yeer that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in agoordance with the naturs of the
expense, and where recovered, It is subssquently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.12 Irreguilar expenditure

Irregular expenditure is defined in section 1 of the MFMA as follows:

frragular expenditure “, in relation to a municlpality or municipal entity, means

&) expenditure incurrad by a municpality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, & requirement
of this Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of section 170;

b) axpenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement
of the Municipal Systems Act, and which has not been condoned in tarms of that Act;

c) expenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the Plublic
Office-Beares Act, 1988 (Act No.20 of 1888),or

d) expenditurs Incurred by a municipality or municipal entity incontravention contravention of, or that is not in accordance with,
a requirement of the supply chain management policy of the municipalityor entity or any of the muncipality'sby-laws giving
effect to such policy, and which has not been condoned in terms of such policy or bu-law,

but exciudes ependiture by a munieipality which falls within the definition of "unautorised expenditure”

In this context 'expenditure’ refars o any use of municipal funds that is in contravention of the following legislation:

>Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003, and its regulations

>Municipal Systems Act, Act 32 of 2000, and its ragulations

>Public Offica Bearars Act, Act 20 of 1298, and its regulations; and

>The municipality's supply chain management policy, and any by- laws giving sffect to that policy.

National Treasury practioe note no. 4 of 2008/2008 which was issued in terms of sections 76{1} to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008}

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financisl and which was condoned before year end
and/er before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the Irregular expenditure register. In
such an instance, no further action Is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonemant is being
awaited at year end must be recarded In the irmegular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irmegular expenditure was inourred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. if liabifity for the
iregular expenditure can be attributed io a persen, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must theresfter be taken to recover the amount from the person concemed. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt Impeirment and disclose such in the relavant note fo the
financial statements. The imegular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Managemant Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the
Municipal Systems Act {Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the
economic entity's supply chain managerment policy. Imegular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular
expenditure is accounted for ag expenditura in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.20 Segment Information

A segmant is an activity of an entity:
* that generates economic benefits or service potential {including #¢onomic benefits or servica potential relating to
transactions between activities of the same entity);
s  whose resulls are regularly reviewed by menagement to meke decisions about resources to be allocated to that
activity and in assessing its performance; and
s for which separate financial information is available.

Reportable segments are the actual segments which are reported on in the segment report. They are the sagments identified
above or alternatively an aggregation of two or more of those segments where the aggregation criteria are met.
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1.21 Related parties l\j

A relatad parly is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant infiuence
over the other parly, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enfity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Jeint control Is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a binding amangement, end exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing contrel (the
venfurers).

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations betwaen the reporting enfity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity, but is not control over
those policies.

Management are those persons reaponsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipality, Including
those charged with the governance of the municipality in accordance with legislation, in instanges where they are required to
perforn such‘functlons.

Closs members of the family <{ a person are those family metnbers who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by thak
person in their deafings with the municipality.

The municlpallty Is exempt from disclosure regulrements in relation to related parly transactions if that transaction occurs within
nemal supplier and/or client/reciplent relationships on terms and conditions ne more or less faveurable than these which it is
reasonable o expect the municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same aircumstances
and terms and conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by that reporting enfity's legal mandate.

Where the municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above, the municipality discleses narrative
information ebout the nature of the transactions and the related ouistanding balances, to enabie users of the entity's finansial
statemnents to understand the effect of related party transactions on its annual financial statements.

Related parlies and related parly transactions

Individuals as well as thelr close family members, and/or entities are related parfies if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
andfor operating decisions, Management is regarded as a related party and comprises the councillors, Executive Mayor,
Mayoral Committes members, Municipal Manager, executive directors and all other managers reporting directly to the
Municipal Manager or as designated by the Municipal Maneger,

1.22 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that ocour batween the reporting date and the
date when the financial staterents are autherised for issue. Twe types of events can be identified:
= those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporfing date);
and
= those that are indicative of conditions that arcse after the reporting date (non-adjusting events atter the reporting
data).

The municipality will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred.

The municlpality will disciose the nature of the event and an estimata of its financial effect or & statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could Influence the sconomic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Events after the reporting date that are classifled as adjusting events have baen acoounted for In the Annug! Financial
Statements. The svents after the reporiing date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting date hsve been
disclosed in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements,
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Figures in Rand —s@22 2021

2. Segmentinformation

General Informatlon

Aggregated segments

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the municipality is orgenised and operates in thrae key functional segments {or business
areas). To this end, management monitors the operating results of these business units for the purpose of making
decisions about resource aliosations and essessment of performance. Revenues and expenditures relating to these
business areas are aliocated at a fransactional level. Costs relating to the govemance and administration of the municipality
are not allocated to these business areas.

The three key business areas cotnprise of:

Community and public safety which includes community end social services, sport and racreation, public safety, health and
housing services;

Economic and environmental services which includes planning and development, read transport and environmental
protection services;

Trading services which includes energy sources, water management and waste water management

The grouping of thase segments is consistent with the functional classification of government activities which considers the
nature of the services, the beneficiarles of such services and {he fees chargad for the services rendered (if any).
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AUDITOR GENERAL
Alfred Nzo District Municipality SOUTH AFRICA

Annual Financial Staterments for the year ended 30 June 2022

11 JAN 2073
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements I
3. New standards and interpretations {continued)
*  GRAP 104 {amended}: Financial Instruments 01 April 2025 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
*  [GRAP 21: The Effect of Past Dacisions on Mataziality 01 April 2023 Unlikely there will be a
material impact
= GRAP 2020: Improvements to the standards of GRAP 2020 01 April 2023 Uniikely there will be a
. material impact
*  GRAF 1 (amended): Prazentaticn of Financlel Statsments 01 April 2023 Unlikely thare wil be a
material Impact
4. Inventories
Consumable stores 9,568,307 6,937,980
Water , 9,606,060 10,014,034

19,666,367 16,852,024

Water iosses { In cubic meters)

Opsning baiance ( Volumes) 197,692 208,042
Produced { Volumes ) 1,893,811 1,804,827
Less Waler Sales { Volumes) {1.344,187)  (1,311.400)
36 - .
Less Water Stock Closing Balance [ Volumes) (197.561) (187,6882)
Water Losses 540,745 804,877
Cost of prodiicing one cubic matar 49 51
Water loss in Rands 26,837,506 30,848,727
Water loss as a % of produced 29 32

The water losses are a result of leakagaes on the distrribution system, evaperation as well ae flisgal connections,

5. Recelvables from nen-axchange transactlons

Staff Debtors 243217 470,186
Other Debtors 18,746,121 24,536,688

168,989,338 25,006,874

The other debtors are m_ade up of the followlng

Eskom Deposits 7,704,963 7,359,463
Department of water affairs 8,003,815 17,176,685
Prepaid suppliers 268,294 -
Insurance claim GB8B,995 -
Legal costs recovered 180,054 -

18,746,121 24,536,148
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AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA
Alfred Nzo District Municipality 1 JAN 2073
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 1 o
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2021
6. Receivables from exchange transactions
Gross balances
Water 128,856,756 124,980,919
Sewerage 21,515,385 19,180,996
Other 1,392,286 1,480,730
151,764,417 145,622,645
Less: Allowance for Impalrment
Water ’ (81,906,277) (77,468,745)
Sewerage (18,335,053) (16,195,531)
Other (763,823) {843,309)
(101,009,263) (94,507,585)
Net balance
Water 46,950,479 47,492 174
Sewerage 3,176,312 2,985,465
Other 628,373 837,421
50,755,164  §1,115,060
Water
Curant (D -30 days) 2,924,298 3,202,522
31 -60 days 2,138,856 2,534,860
€1 -90 days 2,061,872 2,644,022
g1 - 120 days 1,792,865 1,976,836
»120 days 119,038,866 114,602,680
128,856,756 124,960,920
Sewerage
Cumenit (0 -30 days) 424 565 468,810
31 - 60 days 334,820 321,248
61 -90 days 324,779 317,354
91 - 120 days 320,706 311,220
>120 days 20,110,495 17,764,564
21,515,365 19,180,997
Other (specify)
> 120 days 1,382,297 1,480,730
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AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA
Alfred Nzo District Municipality 11 JAN 2013
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2p21
——
8. Recelvables frem exchange transactions {continued)
Summary of debtors by customer classification
Consumers
Current {0 -30 days) 974,133 1,065,708
31 -60daye 878,295 808,700
B1 - 80 days 881,576 894,073
21 - 120 deys 823,775 788,608
>120 days 85,845,016 81,455,380
86,402,795 85,020,476
Less; Allowance for impairment (78,942,408) (73,908,752)
10,460,389 11,111,724
Industriall commercial
Current {0 -30 days) 758,963 982,137
31 - 60 days 477,681 685,382
61 - 60 days 483,808 762,366
91 -120 days 446 347 630,142
>120 days 30,977,804 30,512,890
33,144,673 33,552,917
Less: Allowance for impairment (7.748,715) (8,115,010)
25,397,958  25437,007
Churches
Current (0-30 days) 24,145 22,301
31- 80 days 15,135 21,0682
81-90 days 15,792 22,780
g1- 120 days 15,847 18,783
»>120 days 2,252, 661 2,085 68D
Subtotal 2,323,860 2,150,596
Less Aljowancs for impairment (2,147,552) (2,025,041)
176,328 125,665
National and provinclal government
Current (0 -30 days) 1,591,622 1,618,988
31 - 60 days 1,102,684 1,342,856
61 - 20 days 1,005,186 1.282,158
91 - 120 days 827,701 840,514
> 120 days 20,978,226 18,581,197
25,506,419 23,865,812
Less: Aliowanca for impeirment (11,408,8658) (2,614,572)
14,008,763 14,051,240
Other Sundry
=120 days 1,387,650 1,232,845
Subtotal 1,387,850 1,232,845
Less: Allowance for impairment (763,922)  (843,309)
623,728 389,538
Total
Cumrent {0 -30 days) 3,348,863 3,660,132
31-60days 2473,775 2,858,108
61 - 80 days 2,961,378
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AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA
Alfred Nzo District Municipality 11 JAN 2073
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 :
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 2021
6. Recelvables from exchange transactions (continued)
91 - 120 days 2,113,671 2,288,057
»>120 days 141,441,657 133,847,972
151,764,417 145,622,644
Less: Allawance for impairment {101,000,262) (94,507,584}
50,755,168 51,115,060
Recongitiation of allowance for impairment
Balance at beginning of the year (94,507,585) (94.444,711)
Contributions to allowance (6,501,668) (62,874)
{101,009,253) (94,507,585)
7. VAT recejvable
VAT 42145168 42,576,200
The municipality Is on cash basis for VAT
8. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist oft
Call Deposits 960,163,858 691,812,278
Bank balances 6,675,587  B3,531,238
966,839,445 775,143,517
The municipality had the following bank accounts
Account number / description Bank statement balances Cash book balances
30 June 2022 30 June 2021" 30 June 2020 30June 2022 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Main Account- Current Acount 12,976,230 106,380,422 21,280,286 6,675,587 83,531,239 2,829,436
#62024932074
ANDM Main Cell Account 222 870,871 326,234,743 176,226,187 222,870,671 328,234,743 176,228,188
#B824774364553
DBSA- Loan Account # 119,077,618 79,674,807 90,301,087 119,977,618 78,674,807 90,301,069
6245228732
Rural Read Asset Management 4,716,220 2,364,712 4,716,220 2,384,712 3,956
#62454857720
Regional Bulk Account # 1,811,937 6,547,358 1,811,837 6,547,358 16,276
82027459371
EPWP Account #62058637110 17,890 411,767 17,890 411,757 9,833
FMG Account # 820330345097 3,315 715,180 3,315 715,180 3,715
WSIG Account # 62033034448 40,367,988 3,768,668 40,367,968 3,768,668 58,600
Energy & Efficiency Account # 5,281 1,780,382 5,281 1,780,382 31,184
62027455808
Salaries and Allowances 170,958,541 186,500,697 12,670,880 170,968,541 185500,897 12,670,880
Account #820255448855
1SDG Account #82093560136 11,801 2,385,856 11,801 2,385,856 12,427
MIG Account #62085388328 66,636488  €8,375,579 333,500 66636488 68375579 333,500
Nedbank 27,846,573 11,852,540 - 27848573 11,852,540 -
Standard Bank 101,643,836 - - 101,643,836 - -
Standard Bank 2 203,287,671 - - 203,287,871 - -
Peity cash - - - 7,028 - a
Total 973,132,160 797,992,701 300,948,020 966,839,446 775,143,618 282,497,173
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AUDITOR GENERAL
. SOUTH
Alfred Nzo District Municipality AFRICA
Annual Financia! Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 11 JAN 2023
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figuras in Rand 2022 pPO21

9. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Expenditures incurred to repair and maintain property, plant and equipment is included in Statement of Financial Performance
under Contracted services:
2022 2021
R47 761 257 R 76 6589 271

Slow moving Projeets.

1) Some of the feasibility studies done, the construction has not yet started due to budgst constraints and high commitments.,
2) The construction is slow on the following projects due to a number of reasons,

i) Ntibane Water
ii) Fobane Water
iiN) Kwabhaca Water
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AUDITOR GENERAL

SOUTH AFRicA
L - 11 JAN 2023
Alfred Nzo District Municipality
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand - 2022 2021
12. interests In other entitles
investments In controlled entities
Name % % Carrying Carrying
ownership ownership amount 2022 amount 2021
interest interast
2022 2021
Alfred Nzo Development Agency 400.00 % 100.00 % 100 100
100 100
100 100
13. Staff loans
Staff Loans 1,052,861 1,064,861
1,052,861 1,084,861
Allowence for Doubtful debts (1,052,861)  (1,054,861)

The municipality assisted somea employees to buy motor vehicles through provision of car loans. However, some of them have
fong feft the municipality and eome have paseed on. Thie mekes the recoversbility of the amounts in quastion doubtful hencs
the municipality decided to fully provide for the loans.

These loans were granted in 2002. The municipalily does not offer loans to staff anymore.

4. Investments

Designated at amortised cost
Nedbank Long term investment 10,134,587 8,431,087
10,134,587 9,431,087
Total other financial assets 10,134,587 9,431,087
Account Cashbook Ceshbook Bank Bank
2022 2021 Statement Statemeant
2022 2021
Nedbank Account 10,134,587 9,431,087 10,134,587 8,431,087

The Investment is a fixed deposit that matures on 31 March 2025. The investment has a fixed inforast rate of 14.07%.

15. Operating lease asset {accrual)

Current liabilities

{223,529)

(205,046)
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AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Alfred Nzo District Municipality 1.1 JAN 2023

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 -

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 021

16. Unspent conditional grants and recelpts

Unspent conditional grants and recelpts comprises of:

Unspent conditional grants znd receipts

Expanded Public Works Programme (M (1

Finance Management Grant (1) {1

Municipal Infrastructure Grant (1) 88,732,912

Infrastructura Skills Development Grant 3 3

Regicnal Bulk Infrastructure Grant - 1
- 88,732,914

The nature and extent of government grants racognised in the annual financial statements and an indication of other forms of

government assistance from which the municipality has directly benefited;

Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been recognised,

See note 27 for reconciliation of grants from National/Provincial Government,

These amounts are invested in a ring-fenced investments until utilised.

17. Provisions

Reconclliation of provisions - 2022

Opening Additions Totat
Balancs
Litigation 1,200,000 2,703,381 3,803,381
Leave Provision 25,137,671 {2,627,565) 22,610,106
26,337,671 175,816 26,513,487
Resconciliation of provislons - 2021
Opening Additions Total
Balance
Litigation 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Leave Provision 23,863,833 1,243,738 25,137,671
25,093,933 1,243,738 26,337,671

Litigation Provision

On the 286th of June 2019, the High Court of South Africa, Mthathe, deliverad a judgement against the municpality on an old
case between the municipality and Me Z Mgwebl. The two parties are still discussing. The increase is due to the revision of the

estimated amount to be paid.

Leave Provision

Staff leave accrue to staff of the municipality on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions, The provision is an estimate of

the amount due at the reporting date.
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AUDITOR GENERAL

SOUTH AFRiCA
11 JAN

Alfred Nzo District Municipality - AN 2023
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures in Rand 2022 ———2e24-]
18. Employee benefits obligation
Long Service Awards
Current Portion 2,002,000 2,291,000
Non Currant Portion 10.080,000 9,811,000

12,082,000 12,202,000
Long Service Awards

The municipality operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its employees. Under the pian, a long- service award is
payable after five years of continuous service and every five years thereafter io employees, The provision is an estimate of the
long service bassd con historical staff turnover. No cther long service benefits are provided to employees. These provisions are
made to enable the municipality to be in a position to fuifil its known legal obligations whan they bscome due and payable.

Tha most recent actuarial valuations of plan aseste and the present value of tha defined benefit obligation were carried out at
30 June 2022 by Mr C Weiss Fallow of the Actuarial Sodiety of South Africa. The present value of the defined benefit
abligation, and the related cument service cost and past servics cost, were measurad using the Projacted Unit Credit Mathod.

At end of the year 495, (2021: 494) employees wers sligible for Long Service Awards.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the acturial valuations were

Biscount rate % 11 8
Cost Infiafion % 7 -]
Met Effective Discount rate 4 3
Expected Relirement Age - Females 62 62
Expected Retirement Age- Males 82 82
Movements In the present value of the Deffned Obligation were as follows:
Balanca at the beginning of the year 12,202,000 10,809,600
Current Service Cos! 1,507,000 1,402,000
Interest Cost 1,028,000 730,000
Benefit paid (897,007) (582.284)
Actuarial gain {1,657,993) (255,716)
Present Value of Fund at the end of the Year 12,082,000 12,202,000
The amounts recognisad In the 8tatement of Financlal Performance are as
follows
Current Service Cast 1,507,000 1,402,000
Interest Cost 1,028,000 739,000
Actuarial { gain) / loss {1,657,503) (255,716}
877,007 1,885,284
The history of the adjustments Is as follows 2022 2021 2020 2018
Defined Valua of Defined Value Obligation 12,082,000 12,202,000 10,898,000 9,587,888

54



Alfred Nzo District Municipality

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
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AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

1.1 JAN 2023

Figures in Rand

2022 — 2021

19. Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 19,841,978 24,964,262
Accruals 144,326,551 83,446,119
Accrued bonus 5,661,460 5,474,668
Reatentions 73,482,293  80,545102
Third party payments 905,744 115,952
Other creditors 9,206 7.853
Staff craditors 90 19,292
Unpaid salaries 1,568,752 61,689

245,796,164 174,638,138

The accruals and trade payables are both creditors but the distiction is that accruals are invoices that were recieved before

year end . Trade payables are creditors that were not paid at year end.
20, Payables From Non- Exchange Transagtions

These are payments made by customers in advance for consumption.

Advance payments by cusiomers 3,008,207 1,671,698

21. Revehue

Service charges 28,422 862 26,722,055

Rental of facilities and equipment 1.761 2,775

Agency services 263,388 262,001

Other income 4,274,783 1,038,462

Interest received - investment 43,411,288 34,808,322

Government grants & subsidies 1,354,327,106 1,188,755,750

1,428,701,188 1,251,619,455

The amount Inclided In revehue arising from exchanges of goods or services

are as follows:

Service charges 26,422,862 28,722,055

Rentel of facilities and equipment 1,781 2,775

Agency services 263,388 282,091

Other incoma 4,274,783 1,038,462

Interest received - investment 43,411,288 34,808,322
74,374,082 62,863,705

The amount Included In revenue arising from non-exchange transactions Is as

follows:

Taxation revenue

Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies 1,354,327,106 1,188,755,760

22. Service charges

Sale of water 22893232 22,464,721

Sewerage and sanitation charges 3,520,630 4,257,334
26,422,862 26,722,055
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23. Rental of facilitles and equipment
Premises
Premises 1,761 2775
Premises 1,761 2,775

1,761- 2,775:
24, Agency services
Commission earned 263,388 292,091
25. Other Income
Clearance fees 41,302 98,106
Fire levy 40,661 52,269
Sundry income 785,800 787470
Retentions forfeited 3,268,385 -
Insuranca income 138,535 100,617

4,274,783 1,038,462

26. Investment ravenue

Interest revenue
Investments
Debtors fair value adjustment

33,867,704 25,025,733
8,753,684 £,782,588

43,411,288 34,808,322
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27. Government grants and subsidles
Operating grants
Equitable share 818,487,000 673,097,266
Finance management grant 1,950,000 1,700,000
Local government seta 494,669 486,623
Energy efficiency and demand managemant grant 4,000,001 4,500,600
Climate change grant 17,831 -
Expanded public works programme 9,740,000 8,751,000
Rural roads asset management systems grant 2,340,000 2,309,000
Bank SETA 501,500 -
Infrastructure skills development grant 5,500,000 5,435,000
843,121,021 696,278,888
Capital grants
Water services infrastructure grant 145,000,000 94,950,000
Municipal infrastructure grant 487,510,912 340,429,205
Reglonal bulk infrastructure grant 78,605,173 57,097 666
711,206,086 492,476,861
TOTAL 1,354,327,106 1,188,755,750
Equitable Share

In tarms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basie setvices to indigent community members.
During the year the municipality received its draw downs as per National Treasury indicatives
Expanded Publlic Works Programme

Current-year receipts 9,740,000 8,751,000
Conditions met - fransferred to revenue {9,740,000) (8,751,000)

EPWP grant is used to incentivise muniocipalities to expand work creation efforts through the use of labour intensive delivery
methods in the following identified focus areas, in sompliance with the EPWP guidelines: road malintenance and maintananca
of buildings, low traffic volume roads and rural roads, basic services, infrastructure, including water and sewer reticulation,
ganitation, pipelines ( exsiuding bulk infrastruciure) other aconomie and social infrastructure, tourism and cultural industries,
waste management, parks and beautification, sustainable land based livelihoods, soclal services programmes and community
safety programmes.

During the year, the municipality received its draw downs as per National Treasury indicatives
Finance Management Grant (FMG)

Current-year receipts 1,950,000 1,700,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {1,950,000) (1,700,000)

The Finance Managemant Grant is allocated to municipalities to promote and support reforms in financial management by
building capacity in municipalities to implement the Finance Management Act. No funds have been withheld.

During the year, the municipalily received its draw downs as per National Treastiry indicatives.
Municipal Infrastructure Grant (MIG)

Balance unspent at beginning of year 88,732,914 70,880,119
Current-year reselpts 308,778,000 358,282,000
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27. Government grants and subsldies {continued)

Conditions met - transferred to revenus (487,510,214} (340,429,205)

- 88,732,914

The grant is meant to eradicate basic municipal infrastructure backlogs for peor households, micro enterprises and social
institutions servicing poor communities,

Rurai Roads Asset Management Systems Grant

Current-year receipts 2,340,000 2,309,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (2,340,000) (2,308,000}

- i

The grant is used to assist district munleipalities to se! up road asset management eystems and collect read, bridge and traffic
data on municipal road networks in line with the Road Infrastructure Strategic Framework for South Africa.

Infrastructure Skiits Development Grant

Current-year receipis 5,500,000 5,435,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue (5,500,000) (5,435,000)

The grant is used to recruil unemployed graduates Into municipslities fo be trained and professicnally registered as per the
requirements of the relevant statutory councils within the built environment

During the year, the municipality raceived its draw downs as per Naticnal Treasury indicatives..

Reglonal Bulk Infrastructure Grant (RBIG)

Current-year receipis 68,701,358 57,097,656
Conditions met - transferred o revenue (78,695,173) (57,097,656)
{9,903,815) -

The grant is used to develop new, refurbish, upgrade and replace ageing bulk water and sanitation infrastructurs of regional
significance that connects water and sanitation infrastructure that connects water resources to infrastructure serving extensive
areas across municipal boundaries or large bulk infrastructure serving numerous communitias over a lerge area within a
municipality.

To implement bulk infrastructure with a potentlal of addressing water conservation and water demand management (WC/ANDM)
projects to fadlitate and contribute {o the implementation of local (WC/WDM) projects that will directly impact on bulk
infrastructure requirements.

The municipality receives money from DWA after meeting the conditions hence at year end the municiplaity had met senditions
for RS 803 815 for which DWA wes yet to pey the munlcipallty.

Energy Efflclency and Demand Management Grant

Cutreni-yeer receipts 4,000,000 4,500,000
Conditions met - transferred to revenue {4,000,000) (4,500,000)

- -

The grant was used {o subsidiee to municipalifies to implement energy efficiency and demand side management initlatives
within municipal Infrastructure In order to reduce electricity consumption and Improve energy efficiency.

During the year, the municipality recleved its draw downs as per National Treasury indicatives.
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27. Government grants and subsldies (continued)

Water Services Infrastructure Grant (WSIG)

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 5,430,266

Current-year recaipts
Conditions met - transferred te revenus
Reczlled by treasury

145,000,000 94,950,000
(145,000,000)  (94,950,000)
- (5430,266)

The grant is used to facilitate the planning and implementation of various water and sanitation projects to accelerate backiog

reduction and enhance the sustainabllity of services especiatly in rural municipalities.

During the year, the municipality received its draw downs es per National Treasury indicatives.
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28. Employee related costs
Basic 184,600,002 188,833,162
Bonus 11,833,893 11,442,671
Medical aid - company contributions 11,768,618 10,864,314
UIF 1,520,403 1,384,057
COIDA - 1,707,587
SDL 2,118,863 1,737.284
Leave pay provision charge 1,854,940 3,020,411
Defined contribufion pians 20,985,834 20,093,427
Overtime payments 4,918,605 4.937.718
Leng-service awards 2,534,999 2,140,898
Transport allowance 17,666,623 17,587,908
Housing benefits and allowances 8,024,208 7,178,808
Standby Allowances 2,714,325 2,420,403
Shift allowances 3,208,407 2,286,834
Bargaining Counclt 67,187 64,572
271,618,377 275,560,182
Remuneration of Municipal Manager
Annual remunseration 1,181,762 1,141,799
Car allowance 137,872 133,210
Annual bonus 98,480 83,751
Contributions to UIF, SDL and levy 19,442 16,012
Pension, housing and medical allowances 551,489 §32,840
1,989,045 1,917,612
Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer
Annual remuneration 1,067,764 1,184,628
Car allowance 274,668 269,710
Annual bonus 67,381 78,123
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 17,772 13,582
Leave pay 299,125 -
Apeting Allowance . 11,719
Housing Allowance 10,678 -
1,737,388 1,587,772
Remuneration of Senlor Managet - Cotrporate Services
Annual remuneration 747,873 346,603
Car Allowance 249,291 56,826
Annual bonus 40,387 26,741
Contributions o UIF, SDL and levy 13,669 3,105
Medical aid and pension allowances 186,968 22,730
1,208,188 458,005
Remuneration of Senior Manager- Community Sarvices
Annual remuneration 846,928 818,288
Car allowanoe 141,155 136,381
Anrnual bonus 70,577 85,182
Contributions to UEF, SDL and levy 18,143 13,362
Medical, psnsion and housing allowances 352,887 340,953
1,427,690 1,374,166
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28. Employee related costs {(continued)
Remuneration of Senior Manager- IDMS
Annual remunetation 796,194 789,088
Car sliowance 181,356 183,448
Annual behus 63,277 83,277
Confribufions to UIF, SDL and levy 14,821 12,576
Medical and housing allowances 242,501 234,300
1,308,149 1,282,669
Remuneration of Senior Manager - Planning and Economic Development
Annual remuneration 727,503 702,901
Car aliowance 197,944 191,250
Annual bonus 60,625 33,882
Contributions to UIF, SDL and levy 12,318 9,853
Medical and pension allowances 226,433 218,776
4,224,823 1,158,662
29, Remuneration of counclilors
Councillors 10,499,130 10,823,698
Remuneration of Counclliors
Executive Mayor 875434 893,850
Depufy Executive Mayor 478,385 536,414
Speaker 338,969 715,078
Chief Whip 667,724 670,387
Mayoral Commitiee members 4,515,794 4,586,480
Counciliors 3,622,813 3,441,509
10,499,129 10,823,698

Additlonal information

The salaries, allowance and benefits of counciliors are within the upper fimits of the framework envisaged in section 219 of the

Constitution of South Africa.
30. Litigation Expenditure

Legal feas 7,268,253 4,338,091
31. Depreclation

Property, plant and equipment 102,768,522 95,782,280
32. Amortisation of assets

Armoflsation

Intangible assets 482,017 526,608
33. Finance costs

Infarest on overdus accounts 408,04¢ 3,617
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34. Lease rentals on operating lease
Premlises
Coniractual amouints 471,164 366,767
Equipment
Confractual amounts 1,030,877 630,007
1,802,041 996,774
35. Debtimpaliment
Debt impalrment 8,489,668 50,872
36. Bulk purchases
Watsr 10,265,485 9,638,772
37. Contracted services
Securlty services 30418774 26,380,871
Repairs and maintenence 58,210,564 77,968,251
Agric Park, EPWP, Pit toilets and othar contractors 47,327,816 47,354,224
Professional services 13,943,622 24,050,667
150,960,975 175,754,143
38. Transfers and subsldles pald
Other subsidies
_Transfar to ANDA 17,391,304 17,391,304
Bursaries to non- employees 619,514 384,423
18,010,818 17,775,727
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39. General expenses
Advertising 2,529,690 3,660,004
Auditors remuneration 4,247,516 5,158,258
Bank charges 754,656 868,003
Cleaning 142,980 305,050
Consumables 7,949,128 4,850,086
Discount allowed 961,066 1,817,405
Insurance 4,401,065 2,008,810
Cornfsretices and seminars 1,408,618 1,164 471
IT expansas 2,730,000 1,787,700
Fuel and oil 8,239,400 8,545,547
Printing and stationery 207,014 676,980
Protective clothing 109,610 448,128
Subseriptions and membership fees 3,428,179 8,711,237
Telephone and fax 8,583,661 8,266,301
Travel - logal 18,720,783 15,226,280
Electricity 29,176,523 165,766,672
Agcomodation 4,219,958 2,048,856
Audit committee 770,850 549,925
Cateritig and venua hire 1,876,767 745,530
Indigent support 5,465,836 B,632,889
Licence Fees 11,497,350 8,141,473
Other expenses 9,287,327 9,827,259

123,828,077 106,191,852
40, Audijtors' remuneration
Fees 4,247 516 5,156,256
41. Operating surplus
Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Interest on bank balances 33,857,704 25025733
Operating lease charges
Premises
s  Contractual amounis 471,164 366,767
Equipment
+  Contractual amounts 1,030,877 830,007

1,502,041 996,774

Amortisation of intangible assets 492,017 526,608
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42. Cash generated from operations
Surplus 725,607,812 553,283,035
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 102,788,522 95,782,290
Amoartisation 482,017 526,608
{Loss) gain on disposal 641,847 1,146,510
Aotuarial Gain or Loas {1,657.883) (255,716)
[nterest on long term [nvesiment (703,500} (703,500)
Debt impairment 6,488,868 50,873
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 18,483 {20,911)
Meovements in provisions 175,816 1,243,738
Movernent in employee benefits 1,537,993 1,558,716
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (2,713,343)  (5,722,391)
Recsivables from sxohange transactions (6,141,772) 4,824,520
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 6,017,536 (14,015,189)
Payables from exchange transactions 71,158,026 8,544,708
VAT _ 430,957  (32,409,196)
Unspent conditional grents and receipts (68,732,914) 12,422,523
Payables from non exchange transactions 1,334,508 (563,603)
816,723,763 625,695,915
43. Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for .
. Property, plant and equipment 495,078,061 675,918,881
Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for 495,076,081 675,816,881
This committed expenditure relates to property and will be financed by grants and intemally generated funds.
Operating leases - Bulidings
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year 503,469 277,181
- in gecond to fifth year inclusive 1,668,523 918,880
2,171,992 1,196,080
Operating lease paymenis represent rentals payable by the municipality for office space in Matatiele and Cederville. .
Rental expenses relating to operating leases
Minimum lease payments 208,221 832,888
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44, Contingencles

Contingent Liabliities 2022 2021

1) Zolani Guiwa vs ANDM. In 2010 Zolani Gulwa issued summons against the municipality - 566,189
for breach of contract of amployment alleging that the municipality felled to pay him in .
terms of the contract. The court found in favour of the Municipality.

2) Sinezipho Urban and Rural Development vs ANDM. Claim against the Municlpality for 1,544,713 1,544,713
alleged termination of contract. The Municipality is defending the matter.

3) Moke vs ANDM, Letter of demand received in lisu of speciallst consultancy services 375,827 375,827
rendered. The Municipality is defending the matter.

4) Supa Brick Tile vs ANDM; Clairn for payment of outstending balance for building 127,782 127,782
material supplied as per cession agreement.

5) Mott MasDonaldo PDNA va ANDM : Claim for outstanding amounts. - 68,400
8) Natal Joint Municipal Pension Fund ve ANDM: Claim for payment of oufstanding fund 147,037 147,937
contribution
7) Eugene Nal and Anand Jayraj ve ANDM: Claim for cutstanding payment in respect of - 2,980,117
construction of municipality's infrastructure
8) Sikhokele Maphukatha vs ANDM: Claim for repudiation of employment contract 6,600,000 6,800,000
8) Arule Security vs ANDM :Claim for payment outstanding for services rendered. 1,302,678 1,302,879
10) Medikizela vs ANDM: Alleged termination of contract of employment 3,000,000 3,000,000
11) Umso Construction vs ANDM- Claim for services rendered. 5,390,148 5,390,146
12) Yongama Gxumisa vs ANDM-Claim for repudiation of employment agreement, 5,000,000 5,000,000
13) Ntiabankulu Regional Bulk Consultants vs ANDM- Alleged breach of contract 1,281,470 1,281,470
14) Sokhani Development vs ANDM- Claim for services rendered 19,505,211 -

44,365,867 28,485,362

The municipality has been cited as a third respondent in case involving ANDA and FBBI Solutions where the complainant is
suing ANDA for termination of contract.

The municipality has also been cited in a cass involving ANDA and Madikizela where the complainant is suing ANDA for
termination of employment.

Contingent assets

2022 2021
ANDM vs MP Civils: Failure {o defiver a crawler sprinkler. 30,700 30,700
45. Related parties
Related party balances
Transfers to ANDA 17,391,204 17,391,304

With regards to remuneration of section 56 managers, please rafar to note 28 which deals with the remuneration to Senior
Managers.
The municipality fransferred R17 391 304 exclusive of VAT te its enlity, ANDA

46. RIsk management
Financial risk management

The municipality's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The municipality's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markeis and sseks to minimise
potential zdverss effects of the municipality’s financial performance.
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46. Risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the svent of difficulty in meeting obligatione associated with financial
liabilities that are seltled by delivering cash or another financial asset .

Liquidity risk Is mitigated by approving cash funded budgets at all times to ensure commitments ¢an be seltled once due over
the long term. The municipsilty also monitors ite cash balances on a daily basis to snsure cash resources are available to settle
short tenm obligations.

The fallowing balances are exposed to liguidity risk:

30 June 2022 Payable within Payable in 2 to Payable after 5 Total
1 year 5 years years
Payables from exchange transactions - 247,708,164 10,080,000 - 257,878,164
30 June 2021 Payable within Payable in 2 to Payable sfter § Total
1 year 5 years years
Payables from exchange transactions 176,929,138 £.211,000 - 186,840,138
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46. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer bage. Management evaluated credit fisk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently reted, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is ne independent rating, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financiat positien, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set basad on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the bosard, The utilisation of
eredit limits is reguiarly monitored. Sales to retail customers are gettied in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee
insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument 2022 2021

Long Term Investments 10,134,587 9,431,087
Receivables From Exchange Transactions 50,755,1€4 51,115,080
Recelivables From Non Exchange Transactions 18,809,286 25,006,874
Cash and Cash Equivalents £66,839,445 775,143,517

Cash and Cash equivalents and Non Current Investments
Deposits of the municiapality only held at reputable banks that are listed on the JSE. The credit quality is regularly menitored
through required SENS releases by varlous banks. The riek pertaining to these deposits are considered to be very low.

There are no restricticns on the cash deposits held and no cash were pledged as security. No collateral is held for any cash
and cash equivalents.

Receivables

Regeivables comprise of a large number of users, dispersed across different sectors and geavgraphical areas. On-going credit
evaluations are performed on the financial cendition of these racaivables. Credit risk pertaining to recievables are considered to
he moderate due o the diversified nature of receiavbles and immaterial nature of individual balances. In the case of consumer
debtors the municipality effectively has the right to terminate services to customers but in practice this is difficult to apply. in the
case of debtors whose accounts become in afrears, council endeavours to collect such accounts by “levying of panalty
charge", applicable in terms of Coundil's Credit Controland Debt Collection Policy.

Receiavhles disciosed aftar taking into account the prevision for impairment raised against each class of receivable.
Receivablee are payabie within 30 days. All receivables are outstanding for than 30 days are considered to be past due. Refer
to note 6 for more information regarding the provision for impairment raised against each service type as well as receivables
considersd to be past dus.

No receivables were pladged as security for ligbilities and no coflateral is held from any consumers ( other than consumer
deposits)

The following service receivables are considered past due (mors than 30 days outstanding)

Water 125,932,466 121,758,398
Sewerage 21,000,800 18,714,387
Other 1,382,297 1,480,730

148,416,666 141,953,515

Long Term Recalvables are disclosed efter taking Into account any provision for impairment ralsed against the outstanding
balance. Each outstanding balance is individually assessed for impairment.

Nc receivables were pledged &s security for liabilities and no collateral held from any of the counterparties.
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48. Risk management (continued)
Market risk
Interest rate risk

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value of future cashflows =escciated with a financial instrumeants will flustuate in
amount as a result of market interest changes. ‘

Financial Assets and liabilities that are sensitive to Inlerest rate risk are cash equivalents, investments, and loan payables. The
municipality is not exposed to interest rate risk on these financial instruments as the rates applicable are fixed interest rates.

Potential concentrations of interest risk consist mainly of fixed daposits investments, long tarm debtors, other debtors,short
term investments deposits end bank and cash balances.

The munlcipatity limits its sounterpart exposures from its money market investments operations by only dealing with weil-
established financial institutions of high cradit standing. The credit exposure to any single counterpart Is managed by setting
percentage exposure limits , which are included in the municipality's investments policy. These limits are reviewed periodically
by the Chisf Financiai Cfficer and authorised by the council.

The fellowing balances are exposed to interest rete fluctuations:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 986,839,445 775,143.517
Non Cumrent Investments 10,134,587 9,431,087
Net Balance Exposed 976,974,032 784,574,604
Potential effect of changes In Interest rates on surplus and deficit fo the
year/period
9,769,740 7,845,748
(B,760,074)  (7,845,748)
Sensitivity analysfs

Financial assets.

At 30 June 2022, if the weighted average interest rate had baen 100 points basis higher, with all other variables held constant,
the falr- value impact on the financial performance would have been RB.78 million with the opposite effect if the interest rate
had besn 100 points basls lower.

The sensitivity analysis would be performed by dividing the total investment interest earned for the year by the average interast
rate earned io give the effect of a one percent movement In interest rates.

Finanecial Liabilitles
Changes In the interest rates as at 30 June 2022 would have had no impact on the slatement of financlal performance, as all

borrowings are at fixed interest rate.
Price risk (Markef Risk)

Other price risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fliuctuate because of changes in
market prices ( other than those arising from interest rate risk or surrency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its Issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial Instruments traded in the
market,

The municipality is not exposed to any othar prioa risk.
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47. Unauthorised expenditure
Opening balance as previcusly reported - 108,248,302
Opening balance as restated - 108,248,302
Less: Authorised by council - {108,248,302)
Closing balance - =
48. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance as previously raported 17,844, 047 17,840,472
Opening balance as restated 17,844,047 17,840,472
Add: Expenditure identified - current 406,049 . 3,575
Closing balance 18,250,086 17,844,047
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2021

50. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act (continued)

Audilt fees

Current year subscription / fes 4,247 518 5,156,256
Amount paid - curreni vear {4.247,618)  (5,156,258)
PAYE and UiF

Current year subscription / fae 44,954,268 44,298,045
Amount paid - current year (44,854,258) (44,298,045)

Penslon and Medical Ald Deductlons

Current year subscription / fee 54,547,304 52,317,053
Amount psid - eurrent yaar (54,547,394) (52,317,053)
VAT

VAT receivable 42,145,166 42,576,200

VAT cutput payables and VAT input receivables are shown in note 7.

All VAT returns have been submitied by the due date throughout the year.

Deviations Authorised

in terms of section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations any deviation from the Supply Chain

Mariagement Policy needs to be approved by the Accounting Officer and noted by Council. The awards were approved by the
Accounting Officer and noted by council.

Incident
Impractical to follow SCM processes 1,139,228 2,303,051

Awards to close famlly members of parsons In the service of the state

1) The Director from Munscitis Ndiathi Rerani spouse o Mary Rerani- She werked for the department of Justice.
2) The Dirtector of IPM Zana Madikezela, the spouse of Babalo Madikezela the MEC of public works

Awards to persons In the service of the state.

Service provider Position held In state
Dr S8ondiyazi Medical Doctor

This was for medical examination of water officials.

Suppliers pald after 30 Days

The Municipality did not elways comply with the provisions of section 85 (2) () of the MFMA which requires that all payments
be reasonably made within 30 days, This Is due to inappropriate documentation, invalid banking details and delays in
processig of DWS claims. The total amount of invoices that were not paid within 30 days is & 8 348 481.21.
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Figures in Rand 022~ 2021

&1. Financial instruments disclosure
Categories of financial instruments
2022

Financial assets

At amortised At cost Total
cost
Long Term Investments 10,134,587 - 10,134,587
Unlisted Investments - 100 100
Trade and Other Recsivables fram Exchange Transactions 50,755,164 - 50,755,164
Other Receivables From Non Exchange Transactions 18,860,330 - 18,980,330
Cash and Cash Equivalents 966,838,445 - 966,839,445
1,046,718,526 100 1,046,718,626
Financlal liablilties
At amortised Total
cost

Trade and Other Payebles From Exchange Transaotions 245,796,164 245,796,164
Trade and Other Payables from Non Exchange Transactions 3,008,207 3,008,207
Operating Lease Liability 223,529 223,528

249,025,900 249,025,900

2021

Financlal assets

At amortised At cost Total
cost
Long Temn Investment 9,431,087 - 9,431,087
Unlisted Investments - 100 100
Trade and Other Recsivables from Exchange 51,115,060 - 51,115,060
Other Receivables from Non Exchange 25,008,874 - 25,006,874
Cash and Cash Equivalents 775,143,517 - 775,143,517
860,696,538 100 860,696,638
Financlal Habllities
At amortised Total
cost

Trade and Other Payables from Exchange 174,638,138 174,638,138
Trade and Other Payables from Non Exchange 1,671,608 1,671,698
Unspent Grants 88,732,914 B8,732,914
Operating Lease Liability 205,048 205,046

265,247,796 265,247,796

52. Prior period errors

Prior period has been amended to account for prior period errors

Below is a summary of the total effect that the prior pericd errors, changes in accounting policies and reclassification of
comparatives had on the amounts previcusly disclosed in the annual financial statements, followed by a description of each
individual error with the amounts invelved

The cerrection of the arror(s) results in adjustmants as follows:
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52. Prior perled errors (continued)
Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended Balanceas  Pricr period Reclassfied Restated
2021 previously efror Balance
reported
Service charges 16,271,761 10,450,284 - 28,722,055
Rental of facilities 2,776 - - 2,775
Agency sarvices 292,081 - - 262,081
Other income 1,038,462 - - 1,038,482
interest recelved - investment 34,808,322 . - 34,808,322
Government grants and subsidies 1,188,755,750 - - 1,188,755,750
Actuarial gain 255,716 - & 255,76
Revenue Total 1,241,424 877 10,450,294 - 1,251,875,171
Employee Related Costs (275,690,105) 138,023 - {275,560,182)
Remuneration of Councillors {10,823,898) - - (10,823,608)
Genenal Expenses (101,141,616) (11,213,715) 6,183,377 {(108,191,853)
Litigation Expenditure (4,878,643) 541,552 - {4,338,001)
Debt Impairment (50,873) - - (60,873)
Depreciation and amortisation {85,984,127) {324,771) - (96,308,898)
Finance Cosls (3,617 . {3,617)
Bulk purchases (6,598,012) {40,760) - (9.638,772)
Contracted services (168,035,091)  (654.775) (8,163,377) (175,754,143)
Transfars and subsidies {17,738,303) (37.425) - (17,775,728)
Gain or logs on disposal (1,148,510) - - (1,148,510}
Operating lsases (£08,243) {80,531) - (898,774)
Surplus for the year 554,514,240 (1,231,208) - 553,283,032
Statement of Financial Peosition as at 30 June 2021 Balances as Prior period Reclaseified Restatad Balance
previously errors
reported

Inventories 16,852,024 - - 16,952,024
Receivables from exchange transactions 52,216,857 (1,100,788) . 51,115,059
Receivables from non- exchange transactions 25,222 005 {215,133) - 25,006,872
VAT Recelvable 43 164,219 (588,010) - 42,576,208
Cash and cash equivalenfs 775,234,901 (91.478) - 775,143,513
Property Plant and E¢quipment 4,571432,063 (32,287,787) - 4.538,144,266
Intangible Assefs 1,327,208 - - 1,327,208
Heritage Assets 131,100 - . 131,100
Investmente in Controlied Entities 100 - - 100
Investments 8,431,087 - - 9,431,087
Subtotal 5,495,110,644 (34,283,208) - 5,460,827 438
Operating lease (205,046) - - {205,048)
Payables from exchange transactions (179,193,684) 4,555,546 - {174,638,128)
Unspent Conditional Grants (88,732,814) - - (88,732,914)
Provisions (26,475,594) 138,923 - (26,337,871)
Employee benefit obligation (2,201,000) - - (2,291,000)
Payables from non exchange from transactions (1,671,698) - - (1,671,698)
Employee benefils obligations (9,211,000) - . (9,911,000)
Opening Accurnulated surplus (5,186,628,708) 28,357,531 - (5,1588,2711,177)

- {1,231,206} - (1,231,206)

74



Wy u !

AUDITOR GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Alfred Nzo District Municipality 11 JAN 7023

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2022 2021

52. Prior period errors (continued)

Statement of financlal position

Acocumuiated Surplus

Property Plant and Equipment 32,188,79%
Corraction of Receivables from Non Exchange Transactions 226,836
Correction of Payables from exchange transactions (5,206,974)
Adjustment fo receivables from exchange transactions 1,059,392
Correction of bank and cash 91,478
28,357,531

The municipality conducted a search for unrecorded liabilities relating to 2020/21 financial year.The objective was to ensure
that all the expenditure was reportad correctly in the relevant accounting period.
The search revaaled that cur generat axpenditure had been understated by R763 000 while lease charges and contracted
services had been understated by R0 531 and R654 775 respectively. The same process also resulted in the identification of
&h overstated acorual relating to litigation costs by an amount of R 541 000. The recording of these amounts had the effect of
an upward vanstion of the previcusly recorded payables balance.

In addition, the municipality also undertook & thorough review of all its payables with particular emphasis on those that had
remained static for a long time. The process resulted in the derecognition of amounts held as accruals for contractors under
liquidation. The amount invoived hers was RS million. Similarly, the municipality had been holding on to retentions for
contractors that had failed to meat their side of tha bargain. A decision was then made, guided by the terms of the contract, to
sffect a forfeiture of the retained amounts. The amount involved came to R2 million.

The municipality decided, guided by the relevant standards, to fully disclose the cost of indigent suppott as well as early
payment discount. These were previously netted inte the revenue thus not revealing the true picture, The retrospective
adjustment resulted in an upward variation of revenue from exchenge transaction by R10 450 000 with general expenditure
going up by the same amount.

The municipality had previously reparted Pit toilets as general expanditure, however, this was not in fine with the nature of the
transaction and thus a decision was made to move these to contracted services. The effect of this was a downward movement
of general expenditure by R6 163 377 while cantracted services went up by the same amount.

The municipality had previously incorrectly capitalised domestic water meters installed at consumers premises. These were
derecognised in line with GRAP 17. This resuited in an adjustment of R32 mililon on PPE with accumulated surplus absorbing
the charge. :

Tl;e amount disclosed for water losses was adjusted on discovering of rounding off error on the AFS.
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